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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Members of Minda Kyoraku Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Minda Kyoraku Limited (“the Company™), which comprise the
balance sheet as at 31 March 2021, and the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income),

statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including w summary o€ the significant accounting policies and other cxplanatory information

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (*“Act”) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
ofthe state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2021, and profit and other comprehensive income, changes
in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements,

Other Information
The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the dircctor’s report, but does not include the financial

statements and our auditors” report thercon.

Ouropinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon

i connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is 1o read the other information and.
in doing so. consider svhether the other information is matenally inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears 1o be materially misstated. 11 based on the work we
have performed, we conclude thar there s aomaterial misstatenent of tis other information. we are required to

report that fact. We have nothing woreport in this regard.
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Management's and Board of Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Act with respect 1o the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and tair view of the state
of affairs, profit/loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s Mirancial reporling process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objeclives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are fiee
[rom material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is_a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be cxpected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
shepticisin throughoul the audit. We also:

= ddentily and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. design and perform audit procedures responsive o those risks, and oblain audit evidence that is
sullicientand appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a malerial misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
itentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the overgide of internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order (o design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(1) ol the Act, we are also responsible lor expressing
our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal fimancial controls with reference to Minancial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Fyaluate the appropriatencess ol accounting policies used and the reasonableness ol acconnting estimates and

related disclosures in the financial staements made by the Management and Board of Directors,

Canclude on the approprizteness of the Management and Board of Dircctors use of the going concern basis
ob acvonntine and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether aomaterial uncertinty exists related to
eventar conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’'s ability (o continue as o going concern.
e conclude thata material uncertainty exists we are required o draw attention in our auditor™s report (o
the related disclosures i the financial statements or it sueh disclosures are inadequate, 1o modify our
optiion O canclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up (o the date of our auditor’s report
Hlowever fonture events or conditions may ciuse the Company 10 ¢ease to continuie as i going concern
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* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the tinancial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the [inancial stalemenls represent Lhe underlying transactions and events in a manner that

achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that

we identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and wherc applicable, rclated safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

I As required by the Companies (Auditors” Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “*Annexure A” a statement on the

matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.
2. (A) Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) Inour opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as

it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in

agreement with the books of account.

d) Inouropinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under section 133

of the Act.

€) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2021 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2021 from
being appeinted as a director in terms of Section 164(2) nf the Act

.

) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reterence to financial statements
of the Company and the operating cffectiveness of such controls refer to our separate Report in

“Annexure B”.

(B3) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors™ Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and

according to the explanations given to us:

Fhe Company has disclosed the impoct of pending liigatians as at 31 March 2021 on its fnancial
position inits (inancial statements - Reler Note 31(¢) to the linancial statements.,

o The Company did not have any long-term contracts including dedivative contracts for which there

were any material Toresecable fosses.

Mhere were no amoonts which were required o be transtlerred 1o the Investor Education and

Kb

iii.
Protection Fund by the Company
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iv. The disclosures in the financial statements regarding holdings as well as dealings in specified bank
notes during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016 have not been made in these
financial statements since they do not pertain to the financial ycar ended 31 March 2021,

(C) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under section 197(16):

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by
the company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197
of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under Section
197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16)
which are required to be commented upon by us.

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration number: 101248W/ W-100022

Aot Ak

Ankush Goel

Partner
Place: New Delhi Membership number: 505121
Date: 9 June 2021 UDIN: 21505121AAAAAY605I
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Annexure A referred to in our Independent Auditors’ report of even date to the members of Minda
Kyoraku Limited on the financial statements as of and for the year ended 31 March 2021

()

(i)

(iv)

(v)

{(vi)

{(vii)

(a) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details

(b)

(c)

(a)

(b)

and situation of fixed assets (property, plant and equipment).

The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed assets, by which all
fixed assets are verified during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the
programine, certain fixed assets were physically verified during the vear and no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company and confirmation received from the bank, the title deeds of immovable
properties comprising of freehold land as listed in Note 4 of the Financial Statements. are held in
the name of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the inventories (excluding goods in
transit), has been physically verified by the management subsequent to the year end. For good in
transit, all goods were substantially delivered subsequent to the year end. In our opinion, the
frequency of such veritication is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and nature
of its business. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of inventories as compared to
book records were not material.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans,
secured or unsccured to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties covered in
the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of paragraph
3(iii) (a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According (o the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not given any loans,
or made any investments, or pravided any guarantee, or security o the parties covered under
Section 185 and 186 of the Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any
deposits from the public as mentioned in the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the
provisions of Section 73,74, 75 and 76 or any other relevant provisions ol the Act and rules framed
there under. Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India, the Company is required to
maintain cost records as specified under Section 148(1) of the Act in respect of its products. We
have broadly reviewed the same, and are of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts
and records have been made and maintained. Flowever, we have not made a detailed examination
of the costrecords with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books ol account in respect of
undisputed statutory dues including Provident fund, Employees” State Insurance. Income-tax.
Goods and Services Tax (*GST7), Service (ax. Duty of customs. Duty of excise, Value added tax.
Cess and other naterial statutory dues, 1o the extent applicable, have been regular in depositing
with the appropriate authoritics,

According w the information and explanations given 1o us. no undispnted amounts pavable in
respect of Provident fund, Enployees™ State Insurance. iicome-tax. Sales tan. Goods aid serviee
G CGS T Serviee tas Duty of costoms. Duly ol excise. Value added s Cess and any othed
statutory dues. s applicable o the Company. were inarcears as at 31 Narch 2021 for a period ol
more than six months from the date they became payable.

Accordingio the information and explanations given to us. there are no dues of Tncome-tax o Sales

ax or Service tax o Gaods and Services tax or duty of Customs or duty ol ¢xcise or Value added
tax whieh have nat been deposited hy the Company with the appropriate authositics on account ol

M

any dispute asat 31 Nareh 2021
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(viip) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in the
repayment of loans or borrowings to banks. The Company has neither taken any loans or
borrowings from financial institutions or government nor issued any debentures during the year.

(ix) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company did not raise any money
by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) and term loans
during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(ix) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

(x) According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the Company or
on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

(x1) According to the information and explanations given to us. the Company has paid / provided for
managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of

Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

(xit) As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the
provisions of Clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections
177 and 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required under applicable accounting standard under Seclion 133 of the Act.

(x1v) ‘1he Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xiv) of the
Order arc not applicablc to the Company.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into non-
cash transactions with its directors or persons connecled with him. Accordingly, the provisions of
Clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company is not required to be

registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934. Accordingly, the provisions
of Clause 3(xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

For BS R& Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration number: 101248W/ W-100022

Anhush fock

Ankush Goel
Partner
Membership number: 505121

Place: New Delhi
UIDIN: 21505121 AAAAAYOG051

Date: 9 June 2021
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ report on the financial statements of Minda Kyoraku Limited
for the period ended 31 March 2021.

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report of even date)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Minda Kyoraku Limited
(“the Company™) as of 31 March 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company

for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2021, based
on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the

“Guidance Note™).
Management’s Responsibility lor Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act™).

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the
Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internat financial controls with reference to financial statements were established and
maintained and whether such controls operated elfectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls with reference to dinancial statements included obtaining an understanding of such internal financial
controls, assessing the risk that o material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal contol based on the assessed risk. The procedures sclected depend on the auditor’s

Judgement, including the assessment ol the risks of material misstatement of the linancial statements. whether

due o frand or crio

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suflicient and appropriate o provide a basis [or ou
audit opinion on the Company s internal financial controls with reference 1o financial statements.

AL
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Mezuing of Iuternal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial controls with reference 10 financial statements include those policies and procedures thal (1) perlain
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonahle assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could

have a material effect on the financial statements.
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due
to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm registration number: 101248W/ W-100022

Anhioh Aok

Ankush Goel
Partner
Membership number: 505121

Place: New Delhi
UDIN: 21505121AAAAAYG051

Date: 9 June 2021
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Minda Kyoraku Limited

Balance Sheet as on 31 March 202)

(All amounts in Indian Rs Lakhs, unless otherwise staled)
CIN No-U35122DL.2011 PLC2238}9

Particulars Note Asal Asal
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 4 9,233.25 10,458.63
Capital work -in-progress 4 430.62 -
Right-of-use-asset 4 (a) 244 50 -
Intangible assets 3A 50.05 56.27
Intangible assels under developmeant SR 15317 7.44
Finnncinl assets
Loans 6 13907 160.25
Other financial assels 7 8.35 7.93
Deferred tax assel (net) 8 3187 -
Other non - current assels 10 1.80 41.30
Total Non-Current Assets 10,312.68 10,731.82
Current Assets
Inventories 11 1,257 24 1,064.49
Financinl asscts
Trade receivables 12 2916.97 1,898 42
Cash and cash equivalents 13 333355 3,007.87
Other Bank balances 14 275.24 2.04
Loans 6 2633 2228
Other financial assets 7 535 0.09
Other current assels 0 366.22 232.51
Current tax assels {net) 9 23.12 165.12
Tolal Current Assets 8,204.02 6,392.82
TOTAL ASSETS 15.316.70 1702000
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 15 6,200.70 6,200,70
Other equily 16 5,674.47 3,996.68
Total Equily 11,875.17 10,197.38
Liabilitics
Non-Curreni Linbilitics
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 17 1,510.28 2,527.05
Lease linbililics 215.62 -
Provisions 1 351.53 302.16
Deferred 1ax liabililies (net) i - 1937
Total Non-Current Linbilitics 2,077.43 2,348.58
Current Linbilities
Financial linbilities
Borrowinys 17 - 2449
Lense linbililies 30.62 -
Trade paynbles 19
(n) Totnl outstanding dues of micro enterpriscs and small enterprises 70.74 92 86
{b) Total outsinnding ducs of creditors olher than micro enterprises and small enterprises 2,196.78 1,734.93
Other financial linbilities 20 1,445 51 1,689 30
Other current linbilities . 21 804 83 509 55
Provisions 18 1562 27.55
Total Current Linbilitics 4,564.10 4,078.68
Totnl Linbilkiies 6,641.33 6,927.26
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 18,516.70 17,124.64

Signilicam secounting policies

The Noles referred 1o above form anintegral part ol the linancial sintements
As per our repont of even date itached

Jor BSR & Co. LI

Cherrtered Adecnmtionty
JCAL Firm Rewistration No o HU2U8W WL 100022

Ak Liock

Ankuoah Goel

Purtner

Membership No o 504121
Place New Delln

Date ¥ June 2021

Farand on behall ol the Board ol Directors of
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Ny Directon
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Mindn KYoraku Limited

Statemes of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31 March 2021

(AN amo vts in Indian Rs. Lakhs. unless otherwise stated)
CIN No-U35122DL2011PLC223819

Particular’s Note For the Year ended For the Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
INCOME
Revenue from operations 22 16.337.76 15.883.08
Other incOme 23 280.16 36.13
Tulal Income 16,517.92 15,939.21
EXPENSES
Cost of malerials consumcd 24 7.633.06 7.022.31
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress 25 (88.13) 175.63
Employee benelit expenses 26 2.174.15 2.385.31
Finance costs 27 262.24 319.85
Depreciation and amortisation expense 28 1,327.50 1,675.13
Other expenses 29 3.089.94 3.487.40
Total expenses 14,418.56 15,065.87
Profit before tax 2,399.36 873.34
Tax expense:
Current tax 638.94 339.97
Deferred tax charge/icredity (33.79) (RS 6%)
Profit for the year 1,794.21 622.03
Other comprehensive income:
Items that will not to be reclassilicd subsequently to profit or loss:
Remeasurement gainloss) on dehined benelit plans 10.14 (40.82)
Income tax ¢llect (2.35) 11.89
Net other comprehensive income(expense) 7.539 (28.93)
Total comprehensive income for the yenr 1,801.80 593.12
Basic carnings per share (in Rs.) 30 2.89 1.00
(Face value of Rs. 10 per share)
Diluted earnings per share (in Rs.) 30 2.89 1.00
(Face value ol Rs. 10 per share)
Significant accounting policies 3
The notes referred to above form an integral part ol the financial statements

As perour report ol even dute attached”

For BSR& Co, LLP

Chartered dccountants

ICATL Firm Registration No ;101 2.08W/AV-100022

Anbwh Lok

Ankush Goel

Partne

Monmbership Noo 303120
Place Now Delhn

Pate 9 June 102

IFor and on behalt ol the Board of Directors ol

Minda Kyoraku Limited

j{ &

’ -’}: -
W ),
NE - P D
N 2D FO
Nitesh Minda - Makoto Ikeda
Managing Director Directon
DIN No. 00008300 DIN No. 086612 10
Plice  Gurugram Place  Kanagavwa Lipan
e 9 June 2021 [ite” 9 dune 2021
j ."I %
> : "‘l\:"tb“\'\
’ ) 5
Bhashar Chanidra |\ij|f.'iktf?f§u||
2,
Chiet Fimancial Officer Company Searekin
Nembership Noo S 1616
Place  Guinernum Place Guiagiam

[yate 9 hune 2021 ate 9 hune 2021



Minda Kyora ki Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2021
(ANl amounts i Indhan Rs Lakhs. unless othenvise stated)

Particulars

Year ended

31 March 2021

Year ended
31 March 2020

A, Cash e+ from operating activities
Profit for the year before 1ax
Adyustm ents lor :

Depreciaf1on and amornsation

Unrealised foreign exchange (gain) / loss
Loss on sale of property. plant and equipment
Mark to market to derivative hability
' Finance cost
Inierest Income on fixed deposit
Provision Tor doubthul debis created/ (reversed)

o . . . .
B Operating profit before working capital changes
_'} Working capital adjustments:

(Increase) / Decrease in inventories
(Increase) / Decrease m trade recevables
{Increase) / Decrease in loans

{Inerease) / Decrease in other assets

- {Decrease) / Inerease in trade payables
{Decrease ) / Inciease in other financial habilites
{Decrease) / Increase in long-term and short-lerm provision
{Decrease) / Increase n other curtent liabilities
] Cash generated from / (used) in operations
Income (ax paid
Net cash generated from operating activities
Cash Now from investing aclivities:
Purchase of property. plant and equipment and intangible assets and capital work-it

-

=

progress
Fixed deposits with banks (net)
Interestreceived

Net cash used in investing activities

C.  Cash flows from financing activities
Dividend panl
Repayment ol lease halnlitics
Corporate dividend tax
Repayments of borrowings

; Interest pard
e cash used I Tsmelng aetlviiles
in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Net increase / (decres
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Canh and ensh equivalents nt closing

Compuonents of cash and cash equivalenis:
Cash on hind
Balance with banks
Bank deposi
| Bank overdraft
Cash and cush equivalents o1 the end ol the year

A}

2,399.36 873.34
1.327.30 1.675.15
(571) 2250
222 148
(200 63) 22355
26224 31985
(95.63) (56 12)
(13 86) 14 86
1,275.93 2,201.07
3,675.29 307441
(192 75) 53709
(1.004 69) 300 51
(2.87) (1324)
(133.71) 57219
ERLER] (128 38)
18.63 5813
47 58 S8 14
295 28 (527.09) 11535 1,509.79
3,148.20 4,584.20
(517.64) (339 38)
2,630.56 4,244.82
(831 34) (493 20)
(273 20) 1096
8095 5713
(1,014.59) (394.79)
(124 01) (211 83)
(7167) :
= (49.71)
(871.43) (330 36)
(262 69) (314 88)
(1,263.80) 936.78)
350.17 2,913.25
2,983.38 70.13
o 3333.55 2,083.38
095 362
3,332.60 3,004 25
{2 49)
3.333.55 2,983.38
*

| Note  The Cash How statement has been prepared under the indiect methad as set owom Indian Accounting Standard- 7 on Statement of Cash Hows as notified under seehion

| 133 o the Compames Act, 2043
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Minda 1Kyoraku Limited
Statement of Changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All amounts in Indian Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

A. Equity share capital

Balance as at the 31 March 2019
Changes in equity share capital during 2019-20
Balance as at the 31 March 2020
Changes in equity share capital during 2020-21
Balance as at the 31 March 2021

B. Other equity

Amount

6,200.70

6,200.70

6,200.70

Particulars Retained Securities Other Total

earnings premium comprehensive

income

As at 1 April 2019 2,562.57 1,132.33 - 3,695.10
Prolit for the year 622.05 - - 622.05
Other eomprehensive income (nef of 1ax) - - (PR 93) (7R 93)
Other comprehensive income (28.93) - 28.93 =
Dividend paid during the year (241.83) - - (241.83)
Dividend distribution tax of dividend (+9.71) - = (49.71)
As at 31 March 2020 2,864.15 1,132.53 - 3,996.68
Prolit Jor the year 1.794.21 - 1.794.21
Other comprehensive income (nel ol tax) = x 7.59 7.59
Other comprehensive income 7.59 - (7.59) - -
Dividend paid during the ycar (124.01) - - (124.01)
Dividend distribution tax of dividend = - - -
As at 31 March 2021 4,541.94 1,132.53 - 5,674.47

The notes referred to above lorm an integral part of these lTnancial statements.

As per our report ol even date attached
For BSR & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants
ICAT Iirm Registration No.: 101248 W/W-100022

o

Ankuosh Goel

Partner

Membership No. @ 3035121
Plice @ Gurugram

Piate: 9 June 2021

IForand on behall of the Board of Directors of

Minda Kyoraku Limited

Nitesh Minda
Managing Dircctor
DIN No. 00008300
Place @ Gurugram

Jate: O une 2021

Biraskar Chandra

Chiet inancial Ofticer

Phice @ Guarugram

Dae: 9 Jane 2021

o
5P T
Vakoto Tkeda
Director
IDIN No. 08661240
Place : Kanagawa, Japan

Paies 9 lone 2021

W

oL ‘\\

l(hi[:': ‘l].".ﬂ}l"‘ii;j
Company Secretan
Membership No. A3 616
Place

Date: 9 June 2021

Gurugriam
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Minda Kyoraku Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

(2)

(b)

(¢)

(d)

Corporate Information

Minda Kyoraku Limited, B-64/1, Wazirpur Industrial Area, Delhi. (the ‘Company’) was incorporated in
India on 17 August 2011. The Company is a joint venture between Minda Industrics Limited, Nagasc and
Co. Limited (Japan), Chiyoda Manufacturing Corporation (Japan) and Kyoraku Co. Limiled (Japan). The
Company is primarily involved in manufacture of blow moulding products.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 have been prepared as per the requirements of
Schedule 111 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Basis of preparation
Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under section 133 of
Companies Act, 2013, (the *Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements were authorized for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 9 June 2021.
Details of the Company’s accounting policies are included in Note 3.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian rupees (%), which is also the Company’s functional
currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest lakhs up to two places of decimal, unless

otherwise indicated.
Basis ol measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following  items:

ltems Measurement Basis
(a) Net deflined benefit (asset)/ liability Present value of defined benefit obligations «
(b) Other financial assets and liabilities Amortised cost

Use ol estimates and judgments

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions
that alTect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of asscls, liabilitics. income
and expenses. Actual results may differ [rom these estimates.

Fstimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised prospectively, The Company has considered the impact of Covid-19 while

developing these estimales,

Fhis note provides an oversiew of the areas that involved-a higher degree of judgement or complexily.
and ol items which are more likely 1o be materially adjusted due o estimates and assumptions turming oul
o be different than those originally assessed. Detailed information aboul cach of these estimates and
judgements is included inrelevant notes together with information about the basls ol caleulation for each

affected line item in the financial statenients.
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Minda Kyoraku Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are:

- Estimation of income tax (current and deferred) — Note 9 and Note 8

Significant judgments are involved in determining the provision for income taxes including
judgment on whether tax positions are probable of being sustained in tax assessments. A tax
assessment can involve complex issues, which can only be resolved over extended time periods.

- Estimated useful life of intangible asset — Note 5

The Company amortizes intangible assets on a straight-line basis over estimated useful lives of the
assets. The useful life is estimated based on a number of factors including the effects of
obsolescence, demand, competition and other economic factors such as the stability of the industry
and known technological advances and the level of maintenance expenditures required to obtain the
expected future cash flows from the assets. The estimated useful life is reviewed at least annually.

- Estimated useful life and residual value of property, plant and equipment — Note 4

The Company depreciates property, plant and equipment on a straight-line basis over estimated
useful lives of the assets except certain plant and equipment on which depreciation is provided on
written down value basis. The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived based on an
estimate of an asset’s expected useful life and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The
life is bascd on historical cxpericnee with similar asscts as well as anticipation of futurc events,
which may impact their life, such as changes in technology. The estimated useful life is reviewed at

least annually.
- Estimation of defined benelfit obligation — Note 32 .

The cost of the defined benefit plans, compensated absences and the present value of the defined
benefit obligations are based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. An
actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from aclual developments in
the future. These include the determination of the discount rate; future salary increases and mortality
rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each

reporting date.

(¢) Measurement of fair values

£

.

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require measurement of fair values, for
both [inancial and non-linancial asscts and liabilities.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the
valuation techniques as follows:-

- Level 1 quoted prices (unadjusted) in active imarkets for identical assets and liabilities

Level 20 inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or

liability, cither direetly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.c. derived from prices)

- Level 30 inputs for the asset or Hability that are not based on observable markel data (unobservable
mputs)

When measuring the tair value of an asset or Hability, the Company uses observable market data as far as

possible. I the inputs used 1o measure the fair vatue ol an asset or lability Tall imo different levels of the

fair value hierarchy. then the fair yvalue measurement is categorised i its entirely in the same level of the

Fagr valne hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant 1o the entire meastement

Fhe Company recognises translers between levels ot the Gair vidue hierarchy at the end ol the reporting
period during swhich the chimges have vecurred.
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Minda Kyoraku Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

(f) Current versus non-current classification

@)

(b)

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current / non-current
classification as per the operating cycle. Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for
processing and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents. The Company has determined its operating
cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liability as current and non-current.

An asset is classified as current when it is:

a) Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle,

b) Held primarily for the purpose of trading,
c) Expected to be reatized within twelve months after the reporting period, or
d) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least

twelve months after the reporting period.
All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is classified as current when:

a) It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle,

b) It is held primarily for the purpose ot trading,

c) It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

d) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after

the reporting period.
All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
Significant accounting policies
Foreign currency transactions
i) Initial recognition and settlement

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions or an average rate if the average rale approximates the actual rate at the date of
the transaction. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions are

generally recognised in profit or loss.
i) Measurement at the reporting date

Monetary assets and liabilitics denominated in foreign currencies arce translated into the functional
cwrrency at the exchange rate at the reporting date, Non-monctary assets and liabilities that are measured
at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate when
the fair value was determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based on historical
cost in a foreign currencey are translated at the exchange rate al the date of the transaction. Exchange
dilferences on restatement/scttlenient of all monelary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial Instroments

A financial instrument is defined as any contract that gives rise to o linancial asset of one entity and a
financial Hability or cquits instruments ol another entity
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Minda Kyoraku Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

1) Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual

provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value
through profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or

Issue.
ii) Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at:

a. Amortised cost:- These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method. The amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in profit or loss. Any gains or loss or
derecagnition is are recognized in profit or loss.

b. FVTPL:- These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any
interest or dividend income. are recognized in profit or loss. Financial assets are not reclassified
subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company changes its business

model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not

designated as at FV'TPL:

the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual

cash flows: and
the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair
value basis are measured at FV'I'PL.

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains afid losses

Financial asscls | These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses,
at FVTPL including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial  assets| These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
at amortised cost | interest method., The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest
income, forergn exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in
profitor loss. Any zain or loss on de-recognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial linbilities: Classifieation, subsequent measurement and pains and losses

Financial liabilities are classilicd as measured at imortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is
classified as at VTP it is classilied as held for nading. or ivis a derivative or it s designated as
such oninitial recognition. Financial Tiabidities at FV TP are measured at fair value and net gains and
losses, including any interest expense. are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial Habilities are
subsequently measured at amontised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and
toreign exchange gains and losses are recognised hn profit or loss. Any gain or loss on de-recognition

is also recognined in profivar {oss

(opi

Ah



Minda Kyoraku Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

iii) De-recognition
Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in
which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are wansferred or in
which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet but
retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred

assets are not derecognised.

Financial liabilitics

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or

cancelled or expired. .

Tlie Compuny also deiecognises a (inancial labilily when ils terms we modified and e cash flows
under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the
modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.

(iv) Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet
when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to sct off the amounts and
it intends either lo settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(v) Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets
carried al amortized cost. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a

significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109,
which requires expected liletime losses to be recognized [rom initial recognition of the receivables.

(c) Property, plant and equipment
Recognition and measurement

ltems of property. plant and equipment are measured at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated
depreciation and/or accumulated impairment loss, il any.

Cost ol an item ol property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price. including import duties and
non-refundable purchase taxes. afier deducting trade discounts and rebates. any direetly attributable cost of

bringing the item o s working condition for its intended usc

Property, plant and cquipment under construction are disclosed as capital work-in-progress. Cosl of
construction that velate direetly to specific property, plant and cquipment and that are attributable 1o

construction activity in general are included in capital work-in progress.

Hosignificant parts of an item of property, plint and equipment have different usclul lives. then they are
accountgthlor iy separate items (major components) of property. plant and equipment,

2 M



[

N e e

Minda Kyoraku Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with
the expenditure will flow to the Company.

Depreciation

Depreciation on items of property, plant and equipment is provided as per straight-line method basis, as per
useful life of the assets estimated by the management, which is equal to the useful life prescribed under
Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013 except in the case of certain plant and equipment, depreciation on
which is provided as per the written down value method basis and the life is based on technical evaluation

and assessment.

Leasehold improvements are amortised on a straight line basis over the period of lease or their useful lives,
whichever is shorter. Freehold land is not depreciated.

Depreciation on additions/ (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from / (upto) the date on which
asset is ready for use/ (disposed of). Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at
each financial year-end and adjusted if appropriate. Based on internal assessment, the management believes
that its estimates of useful lives as given above besl represent the period over which management expects to

use these assets.

Losses arising from retirement or gains or losses arising from disposal of property, plant and equipment
which are carried at cost are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

. The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Particulars VManagement
estimate of useful life

N (Years)

Buildings o 30

Plant and equipment B . 5/10/15

Furniture and fixtures 10 -

Vehicles o 3

Office cquipment B o 5

Computers 3 3/6

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets that arc acquired by the Company are measured initially at cost. After initial recognition,
an intangible asset is carried at its cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment

loss.

Development expenditure is capitalized as part ol the cost of the resulting intangible asset only if the
cxpenditure can be measured reliably, the product or process is technically and commercially teasible and
future cconomic benefits are probable. Fapendinue which is 1o be capitalised but the economic benelits
have not yetstarted Howing o the Company we shown as intangible asscts under development. These are
capitalised s and when the cconomic benelits vefated 1o such asset. staits owing to the Company.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only swhen i inereases the future cconomic benefits embodied in the

specific asset 1o which it relates.
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Minda Kyoraku Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

Amortisation
Amortisation is caleulated to write off the cost of intangible assets aver their estimated nseful lives using
the straight-line methed and is included in amortisation expense in profit or loss:

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

- Computer software 6 years
- Technical Knowhow 5/6 years

Amortisation method, useful life and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial year and

adjusted if appropriate.

(e) Inventories

Inventories which comprise raw material, work in progress, finished goods, stores and spares and loose
tools are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value.

Cost of inventories comprises all cost of purchase (net of recoverable taxes, where applicable), cost of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

The basis of determining costs for various categories of inventories are as follows: -

KRaw materials. components, stores and sparcs - Weighted average cost

and loose tools

Material cost plus appropriate share
of labour, manufacturing

overheads.

Work-in-progress and finished goods -

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale,

- The net realisable value of work-in-progress is determined with reference to the selling prices of related
finished goods. Raw materials and other supplies held for use in the production of finished goods are not
wrilten down below cost, except in cases where material prices have declined, and it is estimated that the
cost of the finished goods will exceed its nel realisable value. The comparison of cost and net realizable

value is made on an item-by-item basis.

()  Impairment
1) Impairment of financial instruments

Ihe Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit loss on financial assets measured at

amortised cosl

AL cach reporting date, the Company assesses whether linancial asscts carried al amortised cost s
credit-impaired. A financial asset is credit-impaired”™ when one or more events that have detrimental
impact on te estimated futare cash Nows of the linancial assets have occurred.

Evidence tha the financial assetis credit-impaired includes the following observable data:
significant Dnancial difficulty of the borrower or issuer:
the breach ol contract such as a delault or being past due for 90 days or more:
itis probable that the borrower will enter bankruptey or other linancial re-organisation: or
the disappearance of active market for a sceurity because of financial difTiculties.
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Minda Kyoraku Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

amesrr i

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. Lifetime
expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating
expected credit losses is the maximum contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit

i

risk.
p . - . . - - - . . . ..
3 When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
/ - - . - -

recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and

supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both
' quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and
informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information.

Measurement of expected credit losses

Bz

Expected credit losses are a probability- weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured
as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. difference between the cash flow due to the Company in
[ accordance with the contract and the cash flow that the Company expects to receive).

M o

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet

] Loss allowance for financial assets measured at the amortised cost is deducted from the gross carrying

amount of the assets.

[ Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that
there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that
! the debtors do not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay
the amuunt subject W the write-ofl. However, financial assets that are writlen ofT could still be subject
to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company’s procedure for recovery of amounts

l due.

ii) Impairment of non-financial assets

1 The Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assels, are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine if there is indication of any impairment. If any indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. *

]

.\ Assets that do not generate independent cash Tows are grouped together into cash generating units
(CGU).

! he recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its valuc in use and its fair
vilue less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated [uture cash flows, discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the CGLU (or the assel).

Ancimpairment loss s recogmised b the carrying amount of an asset or CGLUT exeeeds s estimated

reeoverable amount

A hmpairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used 1o determine the
recoverable amount. Such o reversal is made only 1o the extent that the asset’s carry ing amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined. net of depreciation or amortisation. il no

impairment loss had been recognised.
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Minda Kyoraku Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

(h)

)

(i)

Borrowing Cost

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset are capitalized during the period of time that is required to complete and
prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantia]
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that the Company mncurs in connection with the borrowing ot tunds (including exchange ditferences
relating to foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest

costs).

For general borrowing used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of borrowing costs
eligible for capitalization is determined by applying a capitalization rate to the expenditures on that asset.
The capitalization rate is the weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the
Company that are outstanding during the period, other than borrowings made specifically for the purpose
of obtaining a qualifying asset. The amount of borrowing costs capitalized during a period does not
exceed the amount of borrowing cost incurred during that period.

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.
Retirement and other employee henefits

Short-term cmployee benetits

Short-term employee benefit obligalions are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the
related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid e.g., under short-
term cash bonus, if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a
result of past serviee provided hy the employee, and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.

Share-based payment transactions

The employees of the Company are entitled to Minda Industries Limited (holding Company) Employee
Stock option scheme 2019. The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the
date when the grant is made using an appropriate valuation model. That cost is recognised over the period
in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in employee benefits expense. The
amount recognised as expense is based on the estimate of the number of awards for which the related
service and non-market vesting conditions are expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately
recognised as an expense is based on the number of awards that do meet the related service and non-
market vesting conditions at the vesting date. For share-based payment awards with non- VCS[IH"
conditions, the grant date fair value of the share-based payment is measured (o reflect such conditions and
there is no true-up for differences between expected and actual outcomes. The cost of share based

payment is recharged to the Company by the holding Company.

(iii) Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-cmployment benelit plan under which an enlity pays specified
contributions (o authoritics and has no obligation to pay any further amounts, The Company makes
specilicd monthly  contributions towards  Employee Provident Fund (EPF) and Employces® State
Insurance 1o Government administered find which is w defined contribution plan. The Company’s
contribution is recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in which

the employee renders the related service,
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Minda Kyvoraku Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

()

(iv) Defined benefit plan

Gratunity

The Company’s gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation is
present value of the defined benefit obligation for the eligible employees at the end of the reporting
period. The calculation of defined benefit obligation is perfonned annually by a qualified actuary using
the projected unit credit method.

Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses are
recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). The Company determines the net interest expense
(income) on the net defined benefit liability (asset) for the period by applying the discount rate used to
measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then- net defined
benefit liability (asset), taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during
the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses
related to defined benefit plans are recognised in profit or loss.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or
curtailments are recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss as past service cost.

Other long term employece benefits
Compensated absences

The liabilities for annual leave for certain employees are not expected to be settled wholly within 12
months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service. They are therefore
accrued using actuarial valuations and are measured as the present value of expected future payments to
be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the
projected unit credit method. Re-measurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in
actuarial assumptions are recognised in profit or loss. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in profit
or loss in the periad in which they arise,

Provisions and Contingencies
(i} Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligdtion. Provisions are recognised at the best estimale of the expenditure
required 1o seltle the present obligation at the balance sheet date. Provisions are determined by
discounting the expected luture cash flows al a pre-lax rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of moncy and the risks specific to the liability. The umwvinding of the discount js
recognised as finance cosl.

(i) Contingencies

Provision in respect of loss contingencies relating to claims, litigation. assessment, fines. penalties. elc.
are recognized when it is probable that a Hability has been incurred. and the amount can be estimated

relinbly
Income Taxes
Income tax comprises current imd deferred tas. 1 is recognised in profit or Joss except 1o the extent that i

relates 1o an item vecognised divectly in equity orin other comprehensive income. In this case. 1ax is also
recognised directly in cquity arin other comprehensive income. respectively.



Minda Kyoraku Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

Current tax
Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year

and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current
tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the
uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax faws) enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax
return with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off
the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or

simultaneously.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carryine amounts of the assets
g ! p Y ying

and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future
taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Company
recognises a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or
there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such
deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax assets — unrecognised or recognised. are reviewed at each
reporting date and are recognised/ reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no longer probable respectively
that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is reatized
or the liability is settled, bused on the Laws hal have been enacled or substantively enacled by the
reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow [rom the manner in
which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of ils assels
and liabilitics.

Delerred lax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset only il there is a legally enforceable right (o
offsct current tax liabilitics and asscts, and they relate to mcome laxes levied by the same tax authoritics.

Minimum Alternative tax (‘MAT”) under the provisions of Income-tax Act. 1961 is recognised as current
tax in profit or loss. The credit available under the Act in respect of MAT paid is recognised as deferred
tax asset only when and fo the extent there is convincing evidence that the company will pay normal
income tax during the period for which the MAT credit can be carried Torward for set-off against the
normal tax hability. MAT credit recognised as deferred tax asset is reviewed at each balance sheet date
andwritten down to the extent the aforesaid convincing evidence no longer exists.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized upon transfer of contiol of promiscd products or services 1o customers inan
anmount that cellects the consideration which the Company expects 1o reccive in exchange for those

products or services

Revenue from the sale of product is recognized uplront ac the pomt in time swhen the product is delivered
(o the customer, Revenue is measured based on the transaction price. which is the cansideration. adjusted
(o1 volume disconnts. price concessions wnd incentives. i1 any . as specified i the contract with the

customer. Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers,

Revenue Trom services s reconnized i accordance with the tenms of conbiact when the services are

rendered and the related costare incurred



Minda Kyoraku Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

n

(m)

Other income

Interest Income is recognized using the effective interest method.

Leases

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset
for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee.

The Company accounts for each lease component within the contract as a lease separately from non-lease
components of the contract and allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease/ non-lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-
alone price of the non-lease components. The Company recognises right-of-use asset representing its right
to use the underlying asset for the lease term at the lease commencement date.

The cost of the right-of-use asset measured at inception shall comprise of the amount of the initial
measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to be
incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset or restoring the underlying asset
or site an which it .is located. The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any
accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of
the lease liability. The right-of-use assets is depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement date over Lhe shorter of lease term or useful life of right-of-use asset. The estimated
useful lives of right-of use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and
equipment. Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment whenever there is any indication that their
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is

recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
the commencement date of the lease. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in
the lease if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company
uses incremental borrowing rate. For leases with reasonably similar characteristics, the Company, on a
lease by lease basis, may adopt cither the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease or the
incremental borrowing rate [or the portfolio as a whole. The lease payments shall include fixed payments,
variable leasc payments, residual value guarantecs. cxercise price of a purchase option where the
Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option and payments of penalties for terminating the lease,
if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease. The lease liability is
subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying amount 1o reflect interest on the lease liability,
reducing the carrying amount to rellect the lease payments made and remeasuring the carrying amount to
reflect any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease payments.
The company recognises the amount ol the re-measurement of lease lability due to modification as an
adjustment Lo the right-of-use asset and statement of profit and loss depending upon the nature of
modification. Where the carrying amount of the right-ol-use asset is reduced to zero and there is a further
reduction in the measurement of the lease Habilin ., the Company recognises any remaining amount of the

re-measurement in statement ol prolitand loss

The Company has clected not o apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 1 eases to shori-term leases of all
assets that have o fease term ol 12 months or less and Jeases Tor which the underlying asset is of low
value. The lease piyments associnted with these feases are recognized as an expense on a straight-line

) i
hasis over the lease term.,



Minda Kyoraku Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

(m)

(0)

(p)

(a)

(r)

()

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted
earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of equity and dilutive equity
equivalent shares outstanding during the year end, except where the results would be anti-dilutive.

Contingent liability

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control
of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases
where there is a liability that cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company
does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

Contingent assets

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements. However, contingent
asscts arc assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arisc.,
the asset and related income are recognised in the period in which the change occurs.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reporled in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision maker.

An operating scgment is a componént that engages in business activities from which it may carn revenucs

and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the other
components, and for which discrete financial information is available.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of

changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of ¢ash and short term

deposits, as defined above.

Recent pronouncements

On NMareh 202021 the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) through a notilication, amended Schedule
1 of the Compunies Act. 2013, The amendments revise Division [, 11 and HI of Schedule 11 and are
applicable from April 1, 2021, The Company is evaluating the effect of the wumendments on its [inancial

statements
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Minda Kyeraku Limited
Notes to the linancinl stalements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All amounts in Indian Rs. Lakhs. unless otherwise stated)

d(n) Righy-nf—nw assets andd T ease liahilities

The Company has entered into commercial leases on Solar Plant usage and Building, Leases entered for Solar Plant usage has

life of 15 vears.

The Company has elected to apply practical expedient for not 10 separate non-lease components from lease components while

accounting tor right of use of plant and machinery.

(i) Following are the changes in the carrying value of right-ol-use assels for the year ended 31 March 2021:

Particulars

Plant and equipment

Total

Gross carrying amounts

Bulauce al 1 April 2019

Add: Additions made during the year

Less: On disposals / adjustments during the vear

Balance at 31 March 2020

Balance at | April 2020
Add: Additions made during the year
Less: On disposals / adjustments during Lhe year

248 64

Ralance at 31 March 2021

243.64

Accumulated amortisation

Balance at 1 April 2019

Add: Amortisation charged for the year

Less: On disposals / adjustments during the year

Balance at 31 March 2020

Balance at | Aprit 2020

Add: Amortisation charged for the year

Less: On disposals / adjustments during the year
Balance at 31 March 2021

414

AT

Net carrying amounts

At 31 March 2020

AL31 March 2021

2:4.50

244.50

(ii) The following is the movement in lease liabilities during the year ended 31 March 2021:

Particulars

Amount

Balance at T April 2019

Additions

Finance cost accrued during the period

Adjusiments during the period

Repayment ol lease liabililies

Balanee at 31 March 2020

Opening Balance

Additions

Finance cost accrued during the perlod

Adjustiments during the period

Repayment ol lease liabihitics

| Babince at 31 March 2021 -

(iii) The Tollowing is the hreak-up of current and non-current lease liabilities:

Papticilies

\x::l_ N
31 Mureh 2021

}('urlcn( Jese labihies

Non-current Tease habihnes

Asal
J1 March 2020

(I yIhe table belows prosides detatls vegading Future Tense pasments as at 31 Mareh 2021 on undisconnted basis ¢

[l_’-.u Hicnlnis

Nol faer B Es e

Fater than by ear bul not Tarer e S veany
Muore than 5 e
1t

Fhant s vquipment
o 3002 |
12005 |

27699
427.606
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Minda Kyoraku Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the yvear ended 31 March 2021
(All amounts in Indian Rs. Lakhs. unless otherwise stated)

5  A.lIntangible assets

Reconciliation of carrying amount

Particulars Technical Knowhow Software Total
Gross carrying value (deemed cost) '
Balance at 1 April 2019 122.34 69.00 191.34
Add: Additions during the year - 1.49 1.49
Less: Disposals / adjustments during the year - - -
Balance at 31 March 2020 122.34 70.49 192.83
Add: Additions during the year 7.44 744
Less: Disposals / adjustments during the year - -
Balance at 31 March 2021 129.78 70.49 200.27
Accumulated amortisation

Balance at 1 April 2019 84.48 22.79 107.27
Add: Amortisation charge tor the year 19.84 9.45 29.29
Less: On disposals / adjustments during the year - - =
Balance at 31 March 2020 104.32 3224 | 136.56
Add: Amortisation charge lor the vear 4.17 9.49 13.66
Less: On disposals / adjustments during the year - - =
Balance at 31 March 2021 108.49 41.73 150.22
Net carrying value:

At 31 Mareh 2020 18.02 38.25 56.27
At 31 March 2021 21.29 28.76 50.05

S B.Intangible assets under development

Technical know-how under development

31 March 2021

153.17

31 March 2020

7.44
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Minila Kyoraku Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All amounis in Indian Rs, Lakhs, unless othenvise stated)

6 l.oans

(unsecured considered zood unless otherwise stated)

Non-current
Security deposits

Current
Secwrity deposits
Loan 10 employees

The campanies exposure 1o credit risks related to the above loans is disclosed in note 37,

7 Other financial assels

Non-current

Bank deposits* (due to mature afier 12 months from the reporting date)

Interest accrued on deposits

Current
Interest accrued on deposits

Total

Asat As ag
31 March 2021 31 March 29020

159.07 160.25
F— )
139.07 160.25

' 0.42

26.33 21.86
SR

26.33 . 2228

182.53

As at As at
3) March 2021 31 March 2020

7.25
0.68
7.93

0.09
0.09

13.70 8.02

¥ Includes fixed deposits pledged with banks of Rs. 7.25 Lakhs (31 Maich 2020: Rs.7.25 Lakhs) as margin money for vanious limits from bank,

The companies exposure (v credit 1isks related 10 the above loans is disclosed in note 37.

5 Delerred tax assets/ {liabilities) {net)

Deferred tax liabilities -
Property plant aind Equipment

Total deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax nsscts

Provision for employee benefils

Provision for bonus puyable

Provision for doubilul debts

Mark 10 Mk market impact on FCNR Term Loan (MTM)
Others

Total deferred tnx nssels
A]

Net deferrved mx nssets/ (linbilities)

Movement In deferred tx nssets

Property, plunt & cgupments und intangible assets
Others

Provision for emplonee benedits (inchiding bonus)

Ascertimmed [rabihty on FONR Term T ooun (MTM)
ixpenses on whoel 108 not deducted

AL 31 Mareh 2021

Onlnnee us

Asat As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

135.48 234.42

135.48 i 234.42
91.73 85.62

20.33 20.02

12 437

22.76 90.55

2341 14.49
167.35 215.05

*

18 — (19.37)

Rtecogniscil in profit Recognised in OCI Buklance ny at

J1=March-2020  and Joss during 2020- 2020-21 31-March-2021
21
{23412) 98 94 (135 48)
137 (-1 25) . 0.12
105 6.1 12,07 (255) 116.06
DI 16279) 2776
1419 § N2 2341
— L m {2.55) 3187

(7



Minda Kyoranku Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

(AJl amounts in Indian Rs. Lakbs, unless olherwise stated)

10

Movement in deferred tax assels

Property, plant & equipments and intangible assets
Others

Provision for employee benefits (including bonus)
MAT Credit entitlement

Ascertained Liability on FCNR Tenm Loan (MTM)
Expenses on which TDS not deducied

At 31 March 2020

Current tax asset (net)

Current tax assets {nel of tax)

Income Taxes

Amount recognised in the Statement of profit or loss
Current lax

Deferred tax
Tax expense for the year recognised in the Statement of profit or loss

Tax expense for (he year recognised in the Other compiehensive Income

Total tax expense

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Profit before tax
Tax using company's domeslic tax raie
Expected income tax expense
Impact ofilems admissible
Charity & donalion
Other (net)
‘Total income tax expense

Other assets

(Unsecured, considered good inless otherwise siated)

Non current
Capital advances

Current

Prepaid expenses

Advanee 1o suppliers

Balance with government authoritics
Other Advances

Balance as ar Recognised in profit  Recognised in OCI Balance 4 0t
31-March-2019  and loss during 2019- 2019-20 31-Mavch-2020
.20
(223.71) (10.71) = (23442)
0.18 4.19 E 437
67.04 26.71 11.89 105.64
36.55 (36.55) - _
- 90.55 - 90.55
- 14,49 - 14.49
(119.94) 88.68 11.89 (19.37)
As at As at

31 March 2021

23.12
23.12

For the Year ended
31 March 2021

658.94
(53.79)
605.15

2.55
607.70

For the Year enided
31 March 202]

2,399.36
25.17%
603.87

7.55
(6.27)
605.15

As at
31 March 2021

1.80
1.80

< 17.12
334.87

13.99

0.24

366.22

The companies exposure 1o cunrency risks relardd 1o the above assets 1s disclased i note 37

368.02

31 March 2020

165.12
165,12

For the Year ended
31 March 2020

339.97
(38.68)
251.29
(11.89)
239.40

For the Year ended
31 March 2020

873,34
29.12%
254.32

4.69
(1.72)
251,29

Asat

31 March 2020

41.30
41.30

2938
146.m
5298
.17
232.5]




Minda Kyoraku Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 3! March 2021
(ANl amounts 1n Indian Ks. Lakhs, unless otherwise staled)

11

)

=

Inventories As at

{Valued at the lower of cost and nel realisable value) 31 March 2021

Raw materials [Goods in transit Rs. 316.76 lakhs (31 March 2020 Rs. 13.32 932.52

lakhs)]

Work in progress 78.92

Finished goods [Goods in transit Rs. 26.39 lakhs (31 March 2020 Rs. 8.99 144.16

takhs)]

Stores and spares 86.83
14.8)

Loose tools

Notes :

As at
31 March 2020

762.10

4875
86.20

125.16
42.28
1.064.49

(a) The cost of inventories recognised as an expense include Rs. 7.85 lakhs (31 March 2020: Rs. 10.40 Lakhs) in respect of write-down of inventory to net realisable value.

(b) Refer note 17 for information regarding security given against ihe loan.

Asat

Trade receivables
31 March 2021

(Unsecured, considered good unless olherwise staled)

Unsecured considered good 2,861.11
*Unsecured considered good- related party 35.86
Doubtful 0.46
2,917.43

Less: Impairment loss on trade receivables 0.46
2,916.97

* | otal outstanding from the relaicd party in which dircctors hag intercst is Rs. Mil (31 March 2020: Rs. 2.00 Lakha.)
The companies exposure to credit risks related to the above tinancial asscts is disclosed in nole 37.

As at

Cnsh and cash equivalents
31 March 2021

Balances with banks

- On current accounts 3,332.60
- Cash on hand 0.95
Totnl 3,333.55
Cnsh and cash equivalents as per cash Mow statement :
Cash and cnsh equivalents as per balance sheel 3,333.55
Bank overdrafts (refer note 17) -
3,333.55

*
Disclosure on specified bank notes (SBNs)

As at
31 March 2020

1,869.69
28.73
15.00

1,913.42
15.00

1,898.42

As at
31 March 2020

3,004.25
3.62

3,007.87

3,007.87
(24.49)

2,983.38

The disclosures regarding details of specified bank notes held and transacted during 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016 has nol been made in these financial stalements

since the requirement does not pertain 1o Nancial yeur ended 31 Mateh 2021,

As at

Other Bank balances
31 March 2021

Bank deposits (due for realisation within 12 months of the reporting dale) 275.24

27524

AS at
31 March 2020

204

_ 204
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Minda Kyoraku Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(Al amounts in Indian Rs, Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

15

16

Equity Share capital Asat Asat

31 March 2021 31 NIarch 2020
a) Details of share capital
Authorised:
62,007,000 (3t March 2020 62.007,000) equily shares ot Rs.10 each 6.200.70 6.200.70
Issued, subscribed and paid-up
62,007,000 (31 March 2020 62,007,000) equity shares of Rs.10 each 6.200.70 6.200.70

6,200.70 620070

Total

b} Reconciliation of outstanding equity shares at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

Lquity shares:

As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Number of Shares Amount  Number of Shares Amount
Balance al the beginning and end of the year 62.007.000 6.200.70 62.007.000 6,200.70
Issued during the period - fresh issue - E
Balance at commencement and at the end of the year 62,007,000 6,200.70 62,007,000.00 6,200.70

(c) Details of shares held by sharcholders holding more than 3% shares of the aggregate shares in the company

Asoat . As at
30 March 2021 31 March 2020
Number ol shares % ol holding in Number of shares % of holding in
held that class of held that class ol
shares shares
Minda Industries Limited 41.918.600 67.60% 41,918,600 67.60%
Kyoraku Co, Limited 6,400.000 ©10.32% 6,400,000 10.32%
12.401.400 20.00% 12,401,400 20.00%

Nagase & Co. Limited

(d) Rights/Preferences and Restrictions attached to shares

The Company has a single class ol equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 per share. Accordingly, all equily shares rank cqually with regard to dividends
and share in the company's residual assets on winding up. The equily shares are entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time. The voting rights
of an cquity sharcholder on a poll (nat on shew of hands) are in proportion 1o his/her share ol the paid up equity share capilal of the company, Voling rights
cannol be excercised in respect of shares on which any call or other sums presently has not been paid. Failure to pay any amount called up on shares may lead

to lorleiture.
On winding up of the Company, the holders of the equity shares will be entitled to receive assets of the Company, remaining afler distribulion of all

preferential amounts in proportion to the number of equity shares held.

Te) There are no shares reserved lor issue under options and contracts/commitments Tor sale ol shares/disinyestment.
(1) There are no bonus shares issued. shares issued for consideration other than cash and shares bought back during the period ol Tive years immediately

preceding the reporting date

Other equity*® Asoat Asoat
31 Mareh 2021 31 March 2020
Secunties prenminm 113253 1,132 53
Retined carnings LS9 2.861 13
 S6TAT 3,996.68

T Lormoyementn ather cquity reler Statement of clianees i egui
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Minda Kyoraku Limitcd

Notes to the financ
(A}l amounts in Indian Rs. Lakhs. unless otherwise staled)

17 Borrowings

Istatements for the year ended 33 March 2021

Asat Asat

Non current

Term loan fiom bank

Less: Currenl matwilies of long term borrowings
disclosed under other current Habilitics (1efer note 20)

Current
Bank Overdiait

Meovement in linancinl liabilities

31 ¥arch 2024

31 March 2020

2.399.52 3.39848
(889.24) (871.43)
1,510.28 2,527.05

Particulurs Cash and Bank Borrowings
overdralt v

Asat 1 April 2019 70.13 3,432.56
Cash flows 2.913.25 (330,36)
Interest expenses - 319.09
Impact Mark to market to derivative liability - 291.52
Interest paid - (309.84)
As at 31 March 2020 2,983.38 3,422.97
Cash flows 350.17 (871.43)
Interest expenses - 24340
Impact mark 1o market to derivative liabilily - (127.54)
Interest paid - (267.88)
As at 31 parch 2021 3,333.55 2,399.52

Note: The companies exposure to currency. Hquidity and interest risks related to the above financial liabilities is disclosed in note 37,

e Dorrower Towandd o Bl

(L

Nature of see Terms of repayment and rate of interest Asat As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

CITI Bank Rate of inlerest - 3 months MCLR + 2% spread. Company has 1.212.09 1.60:1.11
FCNR Loan Rs 124209 Lakhs (31 March 20200 Rs. 160:0-11 Jraken ainterest rate swap contract to {ixed interest linhilities @
) is secued by S.20% P A on outstanding Rs. principal amount
-Fivst charge on hixed assets of the company sitnated at Gujat
Unit (Both movable and immovable fixed asscts)

The principal amount o’ USD 2,128.263.5+ is repayable in 20

equal quanterly instalments of USD 10611317 commencing

from 09 April 2020 , company has entered in to partial hedge

contract for principal repayment,
ICICI Bank Rate of interest - 3 momhs MCLR + 2% spread, company has 568.13 880.63
FCNR Loan Rs. 56813 Lakhs (31 Maich 2020: Rs. 880.63 }isjiaken a interest rate swap contiact Lo fixed interest iabilities @
secured by 6,68% P.A, on outstanding USD principal amount.
-Fivst Pari Passu charge by way of morigage over all the
imumevible lixed asscts related Gujimat Praject both presen
and future (lmmovable Fixed Asscls) The principal amount of USD. 1,362,862.01 is repayable in 14
-First Pari Passu chaige on all the movable fixed nsscts of the equal quarterty instalments of USD 97.347.29 commencing from
cgmpnny‘s Gujoaral Project both present and futie (Newvabhe 31 December 2019, Fuither, the Company has entered in o
Fixed Assets) partind hedge contrace for principal repayment in USD
= Second Pari Passu charge by way of hypothecation ine
wiirtem assers both present and future of the bonower (Cunent
Asgeix)
1C1CT Bunk Rie of mterest - 3 momhs MCLR 1 2% spread. company i 389.30 9131
FONR Loan Rs 38930 Lakhs (31 Neneh 2020 Rs 913 14 Hiaken o interest ate swap contract ta Bixed interest liabilities @
is secumed by: O.01% P A on omstanding USD principal amoun
SFinst Panic Passu charge by sy of mongage over all the
immovable fined asscts aelated Gupnat Praject hotl present
mul future (Jnumovable Tised Assars) —_— = - —
Fust Pars Passu clinge on all the movable fised assets of i B principal amount of G501 '\'ﬁ‘ 027 3700 6 tepnytibyaild
Coutiginy s Gt Project hotl present and tumre (Moviiile ~'>\]1Iii| quatterly amstalinents ol USD 100 |)73 JKV cummenciig
lined Avaels) fiom i1 December 2000 and Tast payment e LIST SOI866 08
- Second Pan Pass chane by win ol Inpothecitian o will be pind on 280 Feb 2022 Company o entered o pannial
current assets both present amd |.IIII|IL' o the birawes (Cnient fetlri contrac o prneapal repay ment i LSD
Anset)
Yes Binh Kate of merest - 3 months NMCTR - F 50" spread canenthy 2
Wk capial Jean from banks amennting 1o Ry Sil G0 o550 on 31ar Nach 2021
Naeh 20200 R 21 T akhywas sedaned In
Fostpate passa chanee cncallihe Conent assats o the orrow ey
theth presentand e Waorkimy capiad Toany sanchion omountmg to K Nt lakbs b fund
SSevonmd pon prssu e on b ibe movable and nomies il liesd nd B S0 akbs Tor non fund hased
fived assels (ot present and otine)
SSevond pan passo e oncall the s ahle e s ol




Melarramim i

| SIS~

t

[SSSCE

———

Minda Kyoraku Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

(All amounis in Indian Rs Lakhs. unless othenvise siated)

18 Provisions Asat As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Non current
Provision for employee benefits (refer note 32)
Provision for gratuiry 249.61 21882
Provision for compensated absenees 101.92 8334
331.53 30216
Current
Provision for employee benefits (refer note 32)
Provision tor gratuity 4.44 410
Provision lor compensated absences P8 23.45
15.62 27.33
367.15 329.71
Asat As at

19 Trade payables
31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 70.74 92.86
Fotal outstanding dures of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enlerprises 2.196.78 1.734.93
2,267.52 1,827.79

Based on the information available from ithe vendors, the Company has identified and disclosed information under the Micro. Small and Medium

Enlerprises Development Act. 2006 is as lollows:

As at

31 March 2020

Asal

31 Mareh 2021
Th unonnins pentmining g o sapplicrs as ol e eml ol yea
= Prnepal 70.74
< Interesy 0.01
The st of pavanents mide o e supphice nider e At bevond the appointed day during 190
The smennt of fnjerest paid Ty the buver ander the aet bevomd the appoimed day during the
vr
The amount ol interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have 0.01
been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but withowt adding the interes|
specified under the Act
“The amount ol interest acerued and remaining unpaid at the end of cach accounting year, 001
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, unlil 001
such dale when the interest dues as above are aclually paid 1o the small enterprise for the
purpose ol disallowance as a deductible expenditure under the Act M

92.86
0.13

1855

013
013

Ihe Compiny's expusure 1o cinreney and liguidhty asks retated 1o the above financial habihties s disclosed innote 37

\s ol

20 Other financial Habilities
J Mhareh 2021

Current

tnrerest accrned but not due on borrowines Ik 541
Currentmatunity ol long term deb tieter note 17) S8
Dervaunive baabilines Sin
Pavables tor Capual Gouods WAL
Famplos e relived payable WA
i NIEEY!

Ihe Company's exposure 1o hguiding sk related o the aboy e iianeal Tabihoes s disclosed monowe 37
2 Oher Diabilities Mot
31 Mpreh 26029
Currend

Ndvanees Trom cucdonier

Sl e
NiLERA

As ol
31 Nhrreh 2020

222
71445
120 71
I 86
Ui s

1,659.301

As ol
I NMaweh 2020
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Minda Kynraks Limited

Notes to the fimancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(AN amoums in Indian Rs. Lakhs, unless othenwise staled)

22 Revenue from operations

Sale of products
Finished goods
Sale of services

Other operating revenue

Sale of serap

For the vear ended
31 March 2021

16.301.59
204.71

16,5006.30

3116
31.46

16,537.76

For the year engeq
31 March 2020

15,687.19
15841

13.895.60

3718

_—

37.48

15,883.08

The Company is following Ind AS I15 -- Revenue iom Contiacts with customers . As per the comracrual anangement entered with the customers, there are 10 incentive

given to the Company and revenue is recognised as per the contiactual price

Contracied price
Refund Liability

Revenue recognised

23 Otherincome

Interest income on deposils

Liabilitics no longer required writien back

Forcign exchange fluctuation (net)

24 Cost of malerials consnmed

Raw materiale consumed (including packing materials)
Inventory at the beeinning of the year

Add: Purchases during the yem

less * Inventory al the end of the year

Cost ol raw maderdals consimed

25 Changes ininventory of finished goods and work in progress

Stock at the beginning of the period:
- Finished goods
- Work in progress

Cal the end ol the yen

shed voods

- Wark in progress

Decrease in stock

26 Eraployee benelit expenses

Sidavies waees and bonus

Combunon o poyident and ather Tunds

Foaplosed stack vpion expenses el nete 31)

St selhe expenses

27 Finnec unis

Inrerest oxpense o bonosw g s
Tntereat Ovpene on lease Tadsihie
Frrcrest on e tay

Otha chiwees

For the year ended
31 March 2021

16.572.50
(34.74)

16,537.76

For the year ended
31 March 2021

95.63
14.98
169.55

280.16

lar the year ended
31 March 2021

762.10
7.823.48
932 52

7,633.06

For the year ended
31 March 2021

86.20
48.75
134.95

LLE16
78.92
223.08

Fov the year ended
31 Muareh 20271

192917

V627

18371

oo dhe year ended
VI M aeeh 2021

For the year ended
31 March 2020

15,945.34
(62.26)

15,883.08

For the year ended
31 March 2020

56,13

188.13)

217415

56.13

For the year ended
31 March 2020

1.054.47
6.729.94
762 10

7,022.31
For the year ended
31 March 2020
193.01
117.56
310.60
86.20
48 75

134.95

175,

For the year ended
31 Marceh 2020

For the seanr ended
31 Mareh 2020
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Depreciation and amortisation

Deprecialion on property, plant and equipment (also refer note +)
Amortisation on rizht-of-use assets (also refer note 4(a))

Amontisation on intangible assets (also refer note 3A)

Other expenses

Consumption of stores and spare pans
Job worle chorges

Power and fuel

Rent (refev note 33)

Repairs

- Building

- Plant and equipment

- Others

Rates and laxes

Travelting expenses

Payment 10 auditors*

Foreign exchange fluctuation (net)
Provision for doubtful debis

1 epnl andd profzssionnl chppes
Sales promation expenses
Packing and forwarding expenses
Loss on disposal of fixed ossets
Royalty

SAP license fee and other chanpes
Shared scrvices expenses

Miscellaneous expenses?
Total

lPayment lo the auditors (excluding Goods and service tix)
Stautory audit
Other services
Rehmbursement of expenses

*Detail of corparate social responsibility expenditnre (ineluded under the head Miscellaneous
expenscs)
A Amounnt required to be spent by the Company duting the veai
b Amount spent during the year on
(i) Conxtruction / sequisition of assers .

(i) On purpose other than (i) above

¢ Py ment made by the company o polisical panes ocaccardmg sl sestion 182 o sompanies aet 2013

during the yea as follows -

Payment to political parties (neluded unden the head miscellaneans expenses)
Iantienhies

Openmy balimee

Venonntequired 1o be spem dunng the v en

Nnount spent danne the yem

Closie balimee = Unspentamount o scess spant)

Larnings per shang

Profit as por SEaranent of Praticam! o

Wt oy erage nmmiber o sgueiy shares of 1 cach an e pooad
Bosic earning per share I Rupeesy

Mo hrcd v e namiber aleqois o el Mo e pened

Didnted esvning pee st tn Ropeesy

For the yecar ended
31 March 2021

1.309.50
4.14
13.66

1,327.30

For the year ended
31 March 2021

352,56

72843
9.97

924!
289.63
338
5.04
56.52
18.11

11623
31.30
448.91
222
70.63
5174
25429
326 57

3,089.94

18.11
For 1he year ended
31 March 2021
28.18

30.00

Fone the year ended
31 March 2021

For the year ended
ch 2021
(0 69)
28118
3000
(23N

Far the year ended
JE March 2021

L2

42 7 i

2,54

28"

Ll

For the year cnded
31 March 2029

1.64536
2929
1,675,135

For the year ¢nged
31 March 2020

55833
3.5
869,38
9.07

2.0

102.78
145,23
9.63
5.80
141.17
19.61
251,14
14.86
167.72
15.78
34579
1418
168.55
8] 36
23741
330 ()

3,487.40

Wow N
» o N
(o = o

T 19.61

For the year ended
31 March 2020

-
3200

For ihe year ended

31 Mareh 2020

3000

For the year endedd
31 dMarch 2020

R
R LT

TR
For the year ended
31 March 2020
IRUITES
2 Y
fot

o Y T

| ATH]
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Mindn Kyoraku Limited
Notes forming part of the financinl statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

(Allamounts in Rs. Lakhs. unless otherwise stated)

31

S 32

{a) Capital commitments (net of advance)

Estimated amount o! contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for in the books ot account amounts to Rs, 44 .42
Lakhs (3] March 2020: Rs. 68.81 Lakhs)

(b) The Hon’ble Supreme Court of India (*SC”) by their order dated February 28, 2019, set out the principles based on which allowances paid
to the employees should be identified for inclusion in basic wages for the purposes of computation of Provident Fund contribution. The
Company is ol the view that there are interpretative challenges and uncertainty, including estimating the amount retrospectively. Pending
clarity regarding the impact for past periods(before Supreme Court judgement), if any, is not reliably ascertainable at this stage and hence no

financial impact has been considered in the linancial statements.
(c) Contingent liabilities

As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Particulars

Indirect tax matters (Refer Note (1) below)

Note (i)

During financial year 2018-2019. Directorate General of Goods and Services Tax Intelligence issued a Show Cause Notice ("SCN") on the
Company alleging that the cost of drawing/design/specitication received (ree of cost from one of the customers for manufacture of
moulds/dies/parts/components was supposed to be included in the cost of moulds/dies/parts/components (as the transaction value) in supply
made o the customer, Accordingly. the SCN propesed as to why Central Cxcise duty of Rs. 73.71 lakhs for the period October 2013 to June
2017 under the provision ol Section TTA (4) of Central Excise Act ("CEA™) along with penalty should not be demanded and recovered from

the Company. The Company. based upon inputs from its tax expert. strongly believes that this SCN is not sustainable.

As at As at

Employee Benefits
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Non-current

Provision for Gratuity 249,61 218.82
Provision lor compensated absences .101.92 83.34
351.33 302.16
Current
Provision Tor Gratuily . 4.ebe} 4.10
Provision for compensated absences 1118 23.45
Total employee benelit linbilities 15.62 27.55
367.15 32971

h) Delined beneflit phan - Graduity
Phe Company has o dehned benelit gratuity plan. governed by the Paviment ol Gratuity Act. 19720 The scheme provides for a lump sum
pas nrent 1o vested cmploy ees at retirement. death while in employmentor on termination ol employ ment. Vesting oceurs upon completion of

IIve vains ol senvaee
Fhe abos ¢delined bene it plan exposes the Company to tollowing rishs:

Taterest rate rish:
I he detined benetit oblhipation caleulated nses o discount rate based on government honds. 11"bond yiclds fall. the detined benefit obligation
swilbrend to mcrease

Salary in Mation rish

Fhpeher e vvpected morcises mesalan withmarease the detined benetin obliganon
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Minda Ky oraku Limited
Notes forming part of the financiol statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Demographie risk:

This is the risk of variability of results due to unsystematic nature of decrements that include mortality. withdrawal. disability and retirement.
The effect of these decrements on the defined benefit obligation is not straight forward and depends upon the combination of salary jncrease.
discount rate and vesting criteria. It is important not to overstate withdrawals because in the [nancial analysis the retirement benefit of a short

career employee typically cost less per year as compared to a long service employee.

This 1s an unfunded benefit plan for qualifving employees.

Reconciliation of the net defined benefit (asset) / liability:

Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation

As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Balance at the beginning of the year 222.93 124.40
Transfer in liability* 2.03 29.27
Interest cost 15.26 9.60
Current service cost 35.36 29.13
Reme(ils paid (11 39) (11 29)
Actuarial (gain)/loss an obligation
- experience adjustment(s (16.13) (6.36)
- changes in financial assumplions 6.01 47.18
Balance at the end of the ycnr__ - 254.05 222.93
- Long lerm 249.61 21R.83
4.44 4.10

- Short term

* [ew employcees trunsierred {rom other gronp companies, the liability on account of gratnily for emplayee uplo date of transler will be borne

by the respeetive companies.

Expense recognlsed In Statement of profit and loss

For the year FFor the year
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Current service cost 35.36 29.13
Interest cosl 15.26 v.60
50.62 38.73
t *
Remeasurements recognised in other comprehensive income
Actuarial (gain) / loss arising during the year (10.14) 40.82
) (10.14) 40.82

Defined benefit obligations

Actuarial assumptions
Discount rate (pcr annumy

| e \..’||;l|‘\ }[yc\\\lli rote (I\n'r annmmd

Atlrition rale:
upto 3 yeans
from 31- 4 vears

aboye b years

Ior the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

0.80% p.a. 0.83%0 pa.
|

8% 79% Tor Tiest three

vears and 8%

therealic

20, b
2 3%
0, .
2% 20
1% 1"

Assumptions regarding Tutare mortaling aoe hased on Indian Asswed Fives Mortalits (LT AT (2006-08) rates

At 3 NLch 2020 the wenshied oy crage duration ol the dedined bene it obhivanion swas 13 veans (30 Nucly 2020 was T3 vy,
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Minda Kyoraku Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 Mareh 2021

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, wvould have

affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below:

For the ycar ended
31 March 2021

For the year endeq
31 March 2020

Increase

Discount rate (1% movement) 218.60
Future salary growth rate (1% movement) 293.20
Altrition rate (50% of attrition rates) 250.76

254.00

Mortality rate (10% ol mortality rates)

Decrease
297.83
221.84
257.81
254.10

Increase Decrease

191.24 262.14
257.74 194.35
220.07 226.19
222.89 222.95

The above sensilivity analysis are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this js unlikely
to occur; and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to
signiticant actuarial assumptions the same methods (present value of defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unil credit
method at the end ol the reporting period) has been applied as when caleulating the defined benefit liability recognised in the balance sheel.

Expected benefit payments
Undiscounted amount ol expected benelit payments for next 10 years are as follows:

As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Within | year 4.4 4.10
2-3 years 37.72 34.70
6-10 years 78:33 71.75
776.08. 703.08

More than 10 years

¢) Defined contribution phins

[he Company makes contribution towards employces' provident fund and employees' state insurance plan scheme. Under the schemes, the
Company is required (o contribute a specified percentage of payroll cost, as specified in the rules of the scheme, to these delined contribution
schemes. The Company has recognised Rs, 96.27 Lakhs (previous year Rs. 113.53 Lakhs) during the year as expense lowards contribution to

these plans.

As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Provident fund 86.86 102.26
Employees' state insurance scheme 9.41 11.27
96.27 113.53




Lo
v

=

ey [y | E Loy

Minda Kyoraku Limited
Notes forming part of the fimancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

(Al amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

33 Related Parties Transactions

A) Ultimate Holding Company and Holding company
Sk No. Name ol Parly
I Minda Industries Limited. India

Other related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year/previous period:

B) Other enterprise over which Key Management personnel is able to exercise significant influence

SI. No. Name of Party
! MITIL Polymers Private Limited

C) Joint Venture partner
SI. No. Name of Party
| Kyoraku Co. Ltd
2 Nagase & Co. Lid
3 Chiyoda Manufacturing Corporation

D) Associate companics
SI. No. Name of Party
I RokiMinda Co. Pvi Ltd
2 Minda Distribution Services Lid
3 Minda Projects Ltd
4 Mindarika Pvt. Ltd.
5 MindaT'TE Daps Pvt. Ltd.
6 Tovoda Gosei Minda India Private Limited

E)  Key management personnel
SI. No. Name of Party
| NIlLSh Kumar Minda
2 Bhaskar Chandra (from 07 December 2020)
3 Khilendra Soni
4 Nirmal Saini (uptill 14 Janvary 2020)
5 Rakesh Dagar (uptill 10 September 2020)

) Other related parties
Entily where the third entity is an associate of the joint venture partner

S No. Name of Party
I PT. Kyoraku Kanto Mould Indonesia
2 PT Nagase Impor Ekpor Indonesia
3 PT. Kyoraku Blowmoulding
4 Nagase India Private Limited
5 Toyoda Gosei South India Pvt, L1d,

Ao Holding company

I, “Transactions during the year:
{n) Purchase of raw material, components and poris

(h) Other expenses
Munagement lee
SAP License lee and Other Charges
Renl expenses
(¢) Reimbursements
I xpenses recosered 7 recened
(d} Dividend paid during the year

(¢} Employee stock option expenses
1L Balance ontstanding as st the yenr ends

s ables

Year ended
31 Mareh 2021

Year ended
31 Mareh 2020

550.03

226,61
5062
303

RN

838

As ol
31 Mareh 2021

A

627 41

216 95
9214
433

(A
163 18

350

\s ot
31 March 2020
161 08

/ |-, \(‘YO'{:‘

_:3‘ \ T~
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Minda Kyorakn Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2021

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

B. Other enterprise over which Key Management personnel is able to exercise significant influence

1.  Transactions during' the year:
Purchase of raw material, components and parts
II.  Balance outstanding as at the year end:
Payables
C. Joint venture partner
I.  Transactions during the year:

(a) Purchase of raw material, components and parts
Kyoraku Co. Ltd

(b) Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Nagase & Co. Ltd

(c) Other expenses
Professional Expenses
- Kyoraku Co. Ltd
- Nagase & Co. Lid
- Chiyoda Manufacturing Corporation
Ruyally expenses
- Kyoraku Co. Ltd
(<) Dividend paid during the year
- Kyoraku Co. Ltd

- Nagase & Co. Ltd
- Chiyoda Manufacturing Corporation

1l.  Balanee outstanding as at the year end:

(a) Payables
- Kyoraku Co. Ltd
- Nagase & Co. LId
- Chiyoda Manufacturing Corporation

(b) Receivables / Advances
- Kyoraku Co. Ltg
- Nagase & Co. LW

). Associale companies
I “T'ransactions during the year:

(a) Sale of goods
Roki Minda Co. Pvi1.1d
Minda TTE Daps Py, Lid
Toyodo Gosei Minda India Private Limited

() Purchase ol property, plant and equipment
Minda Projects | imited

() Purchase ol raw material, components and parts
Fayoda Gosed Mindi India Py 1 ed
Rokt Minda Co Py
Mindartha Pyt 1t

Year ender
31 March 2021

Year ended
31 March 2020

801.86 587.07
As at Asat
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
79.22 113.73
Year ended Year ended

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

70.28

302.95

116.21
187 82
7832

105.76

12.80
24.80
2.47

Asat
31 March 2021

58.00
3768
91.97

144,11

24.96
48.37
4.82

Asat
31 Mlarch 2020

10.04
358.59
70.49

Year ended
31 March 2021

98.29
413.61
3.41

Year ended
31 March 2020

498
17293
1357

(.13
219

AL

782
6305
779

200 25

458

064
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Minda Kyoraku Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs. unless otherwise stated)
1l.  Balance outstanding as at the year end:

(a) Payables
Roki Minda Co. Pvt Lud
Minda Projects Limited
Toyoda Gosei Minda India Private Limited
Mindarika Pvt. Lid.

(b) Receivables/Advances
Roki Minda Co. Pvt Lid
Toyoda Gosei Minda India Private Limited
Mindarika Pvt. Ltd.
Minda TTE Daps Pvl. Ltd.

E. Key management personnel
1. Transactions during the year:

Managerial remuneration *
Short term employee benefits
Nitesh Kumar Minda
Bhaskar Chandra

Rakesh Kumar Dagar

Nirmal Saini

* Does not include provisions/contributions towards  gratuity,
provisions/conlributions are lor the company as a whole.

F) Other related parties
I, Transactions during the year:

(a) Purchase of goods
- PT. Kyoraku Kanto Mould Indonesia
- PT Nagase Impor Ekpor Indonesia
- Nagase India Private Limited
-Toyoda Gosei South India Py, Lid.

(b) Snles of Goods
-Toyoda Gosei South India Pvt 1.

*

1. Balance outstanding as al the yenr end:

(a) Payables
- T, Nagase Impor Ekpor Indonesia
- Nagase India Privaie | imited
- PT. Kyoraku Blowmoulding

(h) Reecivable
= I Nagase Impor Ekpor Indonesia
-Tovoda Gosei Soath India Py 1l

As at
31 March 2021

As at
31 March 20290

0.51

1.37
16.95

54.49

Year ended
31 March 2021

1.34
1.90

24.84

Year ended
31 March 2020

7115
4.03

compensated absences for

Year ended
31 March 2021

81.28

11.87
4.04

directors, as such

Year ended
31 March 2020

0.03

15.90

238.75
.45

13.24
As al
31 March 2021

0.01
166.20
197.14

As at
31 March 2(_)2()

53.64

88 85
16 93

16.56
21.95

Biscd on the analy sis done by the independent consultant and internal evaluation, the Company his concluded that all refated parts

nansactions are carned out on s length bass

A
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Minda Kyvoraku Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless othenvise stated)

34 Share based payment

The Company had participated in the UNO Minda Industries Limited Employee Stock Option Scheme — 2019 and during the curre pt vear, the
Nomination & Remuneration Committee of Minda Industries Limited ('the Parent Company') had approved the grant of 9.360 equity shares of
face value of Rs. 2/-. allocated to its Managing Director Mr. Nitesh Kumar in terms of the Minda Employee Stock Option Scheme — 9019 The
scheme is monitared and supervised by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directars of Minda Tndusiries 1 imitec

The terms and conditions related to the grant of the share options are as follows:

Particulars

As at 31 March 2021

Scheme

Minda Employee Stock Option Scheme 201y

Year

2019

Date of Grant

16-May-19

Number of Options granted

9.360 options ol Equity shares of face value of Rs. 2/-

each

Vesting Condition

The Company on the Vesting date has a market
capitalization of Rs. 27.000 crore or more

2 Year from the date of vesting

Exercise Period
Fxercise Perind(Rs ) per share 373
Fair value ol the option on the date of grant (Rs.) per share 41.31

Particulars

As at 31 Varch 2021

Scheme

Minda Employce Stock Qption Scheme 2019

2019

Excreised during the year

Outstanding at the end of the year

Fair valuation

The parent company has provided the fair valuation report done by an independent firm of valuers on the dale of grant using the Black-Scholes

Model. The costis recharged lo the Company by the holding Company.

The following assumptions were used for calculation of fair value of grants:

Particulars As at As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Risk-ree interest rate (%) 6.13% - 6.31% 6.13% - 6.51%
Lxpected lile ul‘upliJns (yewrs) [(yeur o vesting) -+ (conbractual option lenm)/2) 1.53 years - 1.85 years 153 yeurs - 1.83 veurs
Lxpected volatiliny (%) 27.92% - 43.62% 27.92% - 43.62%
Dividend vicld 401% - 6.90% 4.61% - 6.90%

i
Lhe rish fiee rate being considered for the caleulation s the interest rate applicable Tor a matarity equal to the expecied life ol the options
hased on the zero-coupon yield curve for Government Sceuritics or 10 sears Government bonds, Volatility calculation is a measure of the

amount by swhich a price has Duetated or s expected to Huctuate during the period. The measure volatilin is used in option-pricing model is

the annuathzed stimdard deviation of the continuously compounded rite of the returm ol the stock over a period of time. The dividend vicld for

the yew s adderived by dividing the dividend tor the period with the current market price,

Fhe ahosve diselosure is based on the information o the extentavailable with the Companm

n
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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35 Segment Information

S

a. Basis for segmentation

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses,
including revenues and expenscs that relate to transactions with any of the Company’s other components, and for which discrete financial

\SAGXE

information is available.

disclosure requirement of Ind AS 108, “Operating Segments™ are not required to be given. The Company operates within one geography i.e.,
India and all the non-current assets (excluding Deferred lax asset and Income tax asset) lies in India. Therefore, disclosure for geographical
segment is also not required. Results of the Company are reviewed regularly by the Company's Board of Directors to assess the performance of

] The Chief Operating decision maker (CODM) examines the company's performance and identified it as single business segment. Accordingly,

the Company and to make decisions accordingly.

b. Major customer
Revenue from customer which is more than 10% of Company's total revenue :

*Customer For the year ended For the year ended
] 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
! Customer A 4.547 4,520
' Customer B 4.019 3.486
Customer C 1.654 2.148

*The Company has opted not to disclose the identity of the customer.




(-

—d

Minda Kyoraky Limited
Notes farming part of the linancial statements for the vear ended 31 Mareh 2021

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs. unless othenvise stated)

36

Fair value measurements
AL Fisancial Instrument by categury .
The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of fimancial assets and financial Habilities. including their levels in the fair value
hierarchy.
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Note Carryving FVPTL Amortised Carrying FYPTL Amortised
Amount cost Amount cost
Financial assets
Loans 6 185.40 - 185.40 182.33 - 182.53
Other financial assets 7 13.70 - 13.70 8.02 - 3.02
Trade receivables 12 2.916.97 - 2,916.97 1.898.42 - 1.898.47
Cash and cash equivalents 13 3.333.33 - 3.333.33 3.007.87 - 3.007.87
Other Bank balances 14 273.24 = 273.24 2.04 - 2.04
6,724.86 - 6,724.86 5,098.88 = 5,098.88
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 17 1.510.28 - 1.510.28 2.551.54 - 2.351.534
Lease habilities (current / non current) 24624 - 246.24 - - =
Trade payables 19 2.267.52 - 2.267.52 1.827.79 = 1.827.79
Other financial liabilitics 20 144551 53,65 1.391.86 1.689.30 126.74 1.362.536
35469.55 33.65 5,413.90 6,068.63 126.74 5,941.89
I. Fair value ol trade receivables. cash and cash equivalents, bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents, loans, other current financial assels.
trade payables, other current [imancial liabilities and borrowings approximates their carrying amount, largely due to the shorl-term nature of these
insbruments
2. Interest rates on long term borrowings(including current maturities) are equivalent to the markel rate of interest. Accordingly, the carrying value of
such borrowings approximates lair valuc.
3. Fair value of'margin money with banks included in non-current other financial asscls is equivalent (o their carrying amount, as the interest rale on
them is cquivalent to market rate.
4. Fair value ol all other non-current assels have not been disclosed as the change from carrying amount is inconsequential,
B. Fair value hierarchy
* *
‘This seetion explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the [inancial instruments that are measured at amortised
costand Tor which Fair values nre disclosed in the financial statements,
To provide an indication about the reliability ol the inputs used in determining Fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into the
three leveds presentbed under Ind AS An explanation of cach level follows inderneath the table
J1 Narch 2021 31 Alareh 2020
Level-1 Level-2 Level-3 Level-] Level-2 Level-3
Other tmanaal halnlities - 53305 > 12014
53.63 - 126.74
Finnnecial Risk Nanagement Objectives
Fhe Campanyas anactive supphier Tor Dlow moualding products expose its busimess and products 1o various marker risks. credit risk and Tgoidiy
tke The Company s deeentiohsed minigernent stuciure swith the mam activities m the plants make necessarny organised risk management syem
Phereentavions nsiovions oplerenaion pules amdome paniende the vepulie vompanmncniion taonghoit e tiotily conrolled maageenend
Provess venasting ol plinnmg controlhmg rd monnornng eolleetvely formn the risk management syatem used 1o deline record and minnmise
apeitne financal and siatemic rsks Below potes explam the sourees of nisks i swhich the Company s exposed o and how it manages the 1ishs
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Mindn Kyoraku Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2021

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs. unless othenvise slated)

a) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices - such as pricing, currency risk and interest rate risk- will affect the Company's icoye o the
value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposure within

acceplable parameters. while optimising the return.
The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at March 31 2021 and 31 March 2020

(i) Foreign Currency Risk

The company is exposed to currency risk to the extent that there is a mismaltch between the currencies in which sales. purchases and borrowvings are
denominated and functional currency ol the Company. i.e. INR (Rs.). The currencies in which these transactions are primarily denominated are US
dollar. Japanese Yen, Thai Bhat. The Company uses forward exchange contracts and currency swap contracts to hedge its currency risk as per the
approved policy of the Company. The Company's policy is to ensure thal ils nel exposure is kept to an acceplable level by buyving or selling foreign
currencies at spot rate when necessary o address short term imbalances. However. the Company has not designated these derivalives gs hedge

relalionship.

Particulars of un-hedged foreign currency exposure

As at 31 March 2020

Currency As at 31 March 2021
Foreign Exchange rate Indian IForeign Exchange rate Indian
currency (in absolute currency currency (in absolute currency

Amount (in Rs.) amounnt (Rs.) Amount (in Rs.) amount (Rs.)
Trade Payables
UsD 0.09 72.95 6.42 5.96 73.39 449.21
IPY 373.33 0.70 101.33 10.96 0.70 7.67
THB - - - 4.66 2.30 10.72

FForcign currency risk sensitivity
A reasonably possible strengthening/ (weakening) of USD, JPY, THB and CURO against INR (Rs.) al the end of the year. would have affected the
measurement of financial instruments denominated in a foreign currency and affected equity and profit or loss by the amount shown below. This

analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates. remain constant.

Exposure gain/{loss) Rs. in lakhs 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Particnlars Change +1% | Change -1% Change +1% |Change -1%
Trade Payables

UsD 0.06 (0.06) 4.49 (4.49)
Py .01 (.01) 0.08 (0.08)
THI - = 011 (0.11)

*
(i) Interest Rate risk
Toterest rate risk is the risk that the i value or futire cash ovs of a financial instrament will Nuctuate beeause ol changes in markel interest rates,
The Company’s exposure Lo the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily 1o the Company’s debt nbligations with lNoaling interest
rates
Phe Company tries to manage the visk partly by entering into fixed-rate instruments and partly by borrowing at a foating rate

Fhe expasure ol the Company s borrossime tointerest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows

\s ol \sat
JUNaeeh 2021 31 Nveeh 2020

Isirtivilirs

N malble Rate bormowanes URDU IR 32207

2,390.52 342297

Lantal

Sarable anterest borrowmes mclude woom Toan rone banks swhich cary MOER Dased iterest rate The company has entered i to partiad hedgg
contnadt tor principal sepasnent

Senstn e anafy s

Voreinonably possible changd ol Te e mcrest rate at the repertime date sonbd ave allected profie o Toss by the amounts shown below s
anvalyvas assumes it alb other s anablos romam constant

s = _alN
A Sadl.
% \ o\
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For finating rate Habilities the analysis is prepared assuming the amamt of the liahility ontstanding at the end of the reporting period was autsianding

tor the whole year.

Impact on profit

Particulars
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

-12.0 -17.0

Increase by 0.5%
12.0 17.0

Decrease by 0.5%

(iii) Other price risks
Fluctuation in commodity price in market aflects directly and indirectly the price of raw material and components used by the Company.
The key raw malerial for the Company’s is High density poly ethylene(HDPE) and Acrylic Butadile styrene (ABS). The fluctualions in prices of

HDPE and ABS are passed on 1o its major customers for the price impacl.

b) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difTicully in mecting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled
by delivering cash or another financial assel. The Company's approach 1o managing liquidily is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sulficient
liquidity Lo meet its liabilities, when they are duc, under both normal and siressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage
1o the Company's repntation [ ang temm eash low requirement is mondared throngh lang term plans In the ine ot long term planning, short term
plons are reviewed on quarterly basis and compared with actual position on menthly basis (o assess the performance of the Company wind liquidity

position.

Ihe Company monitors the level ol expected cash inflows on trade receivables and loans together with expected cash outllows on trade payables and
pany I g Y

other financial tiabilitics. In addition to this. the Company maintains the Tollowing line of credil:

- The Company is having credit limit from banks on account of borrowings. working capital, cash credit etc., of Rs. 1,500 Lakhs

Exposure to Hguidity risk

The following are the remaining undiscounted contractual maturities ol financial liabilities including interest at the reporting date:

As at 31 March 202! On demand Less than 3 3 to 12 months 1-3 Years More than 5 Tolal
months Years
Borrowings - 1.044.74 1,644.50 - 2,689.24
l.easc liabilitics - 7.67 22,95 120.05 276.99 427.66
Trade payable - 2.267.52 - - = 2,267.52
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings - 1150 - - - 14.50
Payables for property. plant and cquipment - KRR B - - = 373 44
Employce related pavable - IS0l 96.67 - - 114.68
- Z.QL‘%I.H 1,164.36 1,764.55 276.99 5,887.04
Asal 31 March 2020 On demand Lessthan 3 310 12 months 1-3 Years More than 3 Total
moniths Yeurs
Borowings 2419 1 098.72 2.816.77 - 3.93997
Irade pay able 1 827 70 : - - 1.827.79
Interest acerned but not due on borrowmes 2000 - 5 20022
Pavables Tor properis plani and catnpiient AT NG 57486
Lplos e related posable T AR 75 06 03
Sy 20E0a7 16747 281677 = 6.458.89

) Credit risk

Creditredc v the reske o finaoeral Tos o the Company 1ba customer o counderpnts 1o o financial msteament [ils 1o meet ity contractunl obliznnons

i nses prmcipally from e Company's seceivable rony customer . The wanymg amount of financial assels represent the maxaimuom credit sk

U Posti
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(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs. unless othenwise slated)

(i) Trade receivahles
The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics ot each customers. However, management also considers
the factors that may influence the credit risk of its customer base. including the default risk associated with the industry and country i which

customers operate.

The Company primarily has the exposure from customers who uses:
- Blow moutding producls

The Company's markeling team has established a policy under which each new customer is analysed individually for creditworlhiness before
transacting with the customer. The Company's review includes due diligence by external agency, financial statements, industry information.

promoter's background and in some cases bank references.

The Company's exposure to credit risk for trade receivable by the type of customers is as follows:

Carrying amount
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Trade rcceivables 2,916.97 1,898.42
Doubtful 0.46 15.00
2,917.43 1,913.42
Less: Tmpairmett loss on trade receivables 0.46 13.00
2,916.97 1,898.42

(ii) Cash and Cash Faquivalent

Credit risk on cash and cash cquivalents and Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents is limited as the Company generally invests in

deposits with domestic banks with high repute.

(iii) Other Financial assets

0) The Company has given security deposits to Government departments and vendors for sceuring services from them. A3 these are well established

organisalions and have strong capacity (o meet the obligations, risk of default is negligible or nil.

b) The Company provides loans o employees for their personal needs and repayment by deduction from the salary of the employees. Loans are given
only to those employees who have served a minimum period as per the approved policy of the Company. The cxpecled probability of default is

negligible as these are deducted on regular basis
The Company's exposure 1o credit risk for loans and other financial assets is as follows:

) Carrying amount
Y30 March 2021 31 March 2020

Security deposils 159.07 160.67
l.oan o emplovees 26.33 21.86
Bank deposits (due to mature alier 12 months liom the reporting date) 7.25 7.23
Interest accrued on deposits 0.435 0.77
199.10 lQ().S_Sm




Minda Kyorakn Limited
Notes forming part of the inancial statements for the year cnded 31 March 2021
(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs. unless othenvise stated)

38 Capital management
e Company’s ubjectives when managing capital is (o safeguard (heir ability 1o continue as # voing concern, so hal they can contimie to provide
fetims Tor shareholders and benefits for other stikeholders, and maintain an pptimal capital structure 1o reduce the cost ul eapilal.
Consistent with others in the industry, the Company monitors Net Debt 1o EBITDA ratio ie. Net deht {1otal borronwings net of cash and cash
equivalents) divided by EBITDA (Profit before tax plus depieciation and amortization expensc plus finance costs). The Company’s slrateay is 10
ensure that the Net Debt to EBITDA is managed at an optimal level considering the abave factors. The Net Debt 10 EBITDA ratios were as follows:
The Company manage its capilal structure and makes adjustments to in light of changes in cconomic conditions to continues as a going concern  The
company has also entered into banking arrangement and profit the debt covenants and compliances on regular basis.

Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Dividend 124.01 241.83
Tax on Dividend 49.71
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Net Debt - 415.10
EBITDA . 398390 2,868.34
Net Debt to EBITDA 0.00% 14.47%
Dividends declared by the Company are based on the profit available for distribution. On April 28, 2021, the Board of Directors of the Company have
proposed a final dividend of Re. 0.59 paisa per share in respect of the year ended March 31, 2021 subject to the approval of shareholders at the
Annuit General Meeting. The proposal is subject to the approval of shareholders at the Annual General Meeting, and if approved. would resull in a
cash outflow of approximately Rs. 365.84 lakhs. .

39 lmpact of COVID-19 on financial statements
In view of the pandemic relating to COVID-19, the Company has considered intemal and extemal information and has performed an analysis based
ol clirrent estinates while assessing the provision towards employee henefits , trade receivibles, non current assets and other current and financial
assets, for any possible impact on the Financial Statements. The Company hds also assessed the impact of this whole situation on s capital and
linancial resources. profitability, liquidity position, imemal financial reporting vontrols ete. and is of the view that based on its present assessment
Whis situation does nol materially impact the financial statements. However, the actual impact of COVIDI9 on the financial stalement may dilfer from
that estimated due to unforeseen circumstances and the Company will continue to closely monitor any material changes to future economic
conditions.

40 The Code on Social Seeurity, 2020 (*Code’) relating 1o employee benefits during emplovment and post-employment benefits received Presidential

assent in September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazetle of India, However, the date on which (he Code will come into elTect has not
leen notified. The Company will assess the impact.of the Code when it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the period when the

Code becomes effective.
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